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Directors’ Report 2022 – 2023 

 
Dear Shareholders, 
 
Your Directors present the Twelfth Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of your 
Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023.  
 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 

(Rs. in lakhs) 
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 

Profit / (Loss) before Tax  (0.18) (0.19) 
Tax expenses - - 
Profit / (Loss) after Tax (0.18) (0.19) 

 
OVERVIEW AND THE STATE OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
During the year under review, there were no activities being carried out by the Company. 
 
DIVIDEND: 
In view of inadequate profits during the year, the Directors have not recommended any dividend 
for the year ended 31st March, 2023. 
 
RESERVES 
Since your Company has incurred loss during the year, hence, no amount is proposed to be 
transferred to Reserves for the year ended 31st March, 2023. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL 
 
Authorised Share Capital 
Authorised Share Capital of you Company is Rs. 10,00,000/- divided into 1,00,000 equity shares 
of Rs. 10/- each. 
 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital: 
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital of your Company is Rs. 5,00,000/- divided into 50,000 
equity shares of Rs. 10/- each. 
 
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
Your Company has not carried out any Research & Development activities.  

mailto:csutcl@adityabirla.com
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, every company having net 
worth of rupees five hundred crores or more or turnover of rupees one thousand crores or more 
or a net profit of rupees five crores or more during the financial year shall constitute a Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee and shall also spend at least two per cent of the average net 
profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial years. 
 
The above provisions are not applicable to your Company hence no disclosure is required to be 
made in this regard.  
 
SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
Your Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate companies. 
 
FIXED DEPOSITS: 
Your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public falling under Section 73 of 
the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.  
 
PARTICULARS OF LOAN GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT 
Your Company has not made any investments and provided any loans or guarantees in terms of 
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its 
Powers) Rules, 2014.  
 
ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
In view of the nature of activities which have been carried out by your Company during the 
period under review, the particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding energy, technology and foreign exchange are 
nil/not applicable to your Company. Further, during the period under review, there was no 
foreign exchange earnings and outgo. 
 
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
None of the employees of your Company receive the remuneration as prescribed under Section 
197(12) of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, hence no disclosure is required to be made in this regard.  
 
CONTRACT AND ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES  
During the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company entered into related party 
transactions. There are no material transactions with any related party as defined under Section 
188 of the Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014. The 
Company has also entered into transaction of taking property on lease of its holding Company 
for using address of registered office at NIL rent. The details of the said transactions have been 
filled in AOC-2 which is enclosed as Annexure-1 and forms part of this Director Report. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Board of Directors of your Company regularly reviews the risk management plan / process. 
The Board identifies potential risks, assesses their potential impact and takes timely action to 
mitigate the same.  
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
Your Company has in place adequate internal financial control systems with reference to its 
Financial Statements.  
 
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
The audited accounts for the year under review are in conformity with the requirements of the 
Act and the Accounting Standards. The financial statements reflect fairly the form and 
substance of transactions carried out during the year under review and reasonably present your 
Company’s financial condition and results of operations. 
 
Your Directors confirm that: 
i. in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, applicable accounting standards had been 

followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if any; 
ii. the accounting policies selected have been applied consistently and judgments and 

estimates are made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of your Company as at 31st March, 2023 and of the loss of the Company for 
that year; 

iii. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of your 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 

iv. the Annual Accounts of your Company have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
v. your Company had laid down internal financial controls and that such internal financial 

control are adequate and were operating effectively; 
vi. your Company has devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.  
 
DIRECTORS: 
Re-appointment of Director 
Mr. Kailash Chandra Jhanwar (DIN: 01743559) who retires from office by rotation and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
 

Appointment of Independent Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 
In terms of the provisions of the Act, the appointment of Independent Directors and Key 
Managerial Personnel is not applicable to your Company. 
 
Meetings of the Board -  
The Board of Directors of your Company met 4 times during the year. The meetings were held 
on 20th April, 2022, 11th July, 2022, 10th October, 2022 and 12th January, 2023.      
                                                                    
Evaluation of Directors, Board and Committees: 
In terms of the provisions of the Act, the Annual Evaluation of the Board and of it Directors is not 
applicable to your Company. 
 
Company’s Policy relating to Directors Appointment, Payment of Remuneration and 
Discharge of Duties: 
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The provision of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee are not applicable to the Company and hence your Company has not devised any 
policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as 
provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
AUDITORS: 
Statutory Auditors: 
M/s. Udeshi Shukla & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Mumbai (Firm Regn. No. 114886W) 
were appointed as Statutory Auditor of the Company for a period of five years to hold office from 
the conclusion of the 10th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 15th Annual 
General Meeting. 
 
The observation made in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for 
any further comments under section 134(3)(f) of the Act. 
 
Explanations/Comments on every remark made by Auditor in Audit Report: 
The observation made in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for 
any further comments under section 134(3)(f) of the Act. 
 
OTHER DISCLOSURES: 
− There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your 

Company between end of financial year and the date of report. 
− Your Company has not issued any shares with differential voting.  
− There was no revision in the financial statements. 
− Your Company has not issued any sweat equity shares.   
− There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

during the year impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future. 
− Your Company is in compliant with the provision of Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Preventions, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules framed 
thereunder. 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
Your Directors express their deep sense of gratitude to all the stakeholders for their co-
operation and support and look forward to their continued support in future. 
 

                                                                        
                 For and on behalf of the Board 

 
 

                                                               sd/-                                                                    sd/-  
                           Mukesh B. Agarwal           Niraj Maheshwari 
                                  Director                                                            Director 

(DIN- 03416254)             (DIN- 00535743)                                                                                        
 
 
Mumbai, 18th April, 2023                       
 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do


 
 

Annexure 1 

FORM NO. AOC -2 
Details of Related Party Transactions 

 
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited 
 
-Holding Company 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Registered office space taken on lease 
at NIL Rent 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Ongoing  
(renewed every 11 months) 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transaction including the value, if any 

NIL Rent 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions’ 

Office space taken on lease from the 
Holding Company for using the space as 
its Registered Office 

f)  Date of approval by the Board 20-11-2018 
g)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 
h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in 

General meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188 

Not Applicable. 

 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. 
No. 

Particulars Details 

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Not Applicable 
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction  
c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction  
d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 

transaction including the value, if any 
 

e) Date of approval by the Board  
f) Amount paid as advances, if any  

                  

For and on behalf of the Board 

  

                                                Mukesh B. Agarwal                                                      Niraj Maheshwari   
                                                     Director                                                                         Director 
                                              (DIN- 03416254)                                                         (DIN- 00535743) 
 
Mumbai. 18th April, 2023 
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Swiss Merchandise Infrastructure Limited 
 
 Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying IND AS financial statements of Swiss Merchandise 
Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the statement of cash 
flows & the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit and 
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 
(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of 
ethics. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter:  
 
Attention is drawn to Note No 4.1 which form part of the financial statements regarding the 
property not been held in the name of the company.  
 
Key audit matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company 
as it is an unlisted company. 

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon 
 
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to 
Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 

https://taxguru.in/company-law/presidents-assent-companies-act-2013.html
https://taxguru.in/company-law/presidents-assent-companies-act-2013.html
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements 
The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under 
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The board of directors 
are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated 
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give 
in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, and the cash flow statement dealt with by 
this report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(f) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting to the extent relevant considering the level of operations of the company 
and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based 

https://taxguru.in/company-law/companies-act-2013-companies-accounts-rules-2014.html
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on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘the Guidance Note’) to the extent adequate and relevant 
to the level of operations of the company.and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us; 

a. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses; and 

c. There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer 
any sums to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. The question of delay in transferring such 
sums does not arise.  
 
d. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 
 
e. The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company 
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and  

f. Based on audit procedures considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances 
followed by us and as per information and explanation provided to us, nothing has come our 
notice that can cause to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain 
any material mis-statement.  

g. The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. 
 

 

For Udeshi Shukla & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN 114886W 
 
Sd/- 
CA Paresh Vijaysinh Udeshi 
Partner 
MRN 042082 
Mumbai – April 18, 2023 
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Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report 

 
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company 
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023, we report 
that:  
 

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of Property.  The company does not have any Plant 
and Equipment hence the reporting is not applicable. 
 
(B) The company does not have any intangible assets hence reporting on clause i(a)(B) 
is not applicable. 
 

(b) The company does not have any immovable plant and equipment hence this clause 
is not applicable. 

. (c) We have been informed by the management that the company has acquired 154 acres of 
land parcel for Rs.52.80 crores, located at Waral, Dist. Raigadh, Maharashtra for 
which the registration of the title to the land in favour of the company is pending. The 
details are provided separately as Annexure A.1 

 
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company the company has not revalued its 
Property. The company does not have any Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use 
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

 
(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, no proceedings have been initiated or are 
pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

 
 ii. (a) As the company has not purchased/ sold goods during the year nor is there any 

opening stocks, requirement of reporting on clause (ii)(a) of paragraph 3 of the said 
Order is not applicable to the Company.  

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, during any point of time of the year, the 
company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, 
in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current 
assets hence reporting on clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the said Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 



UDIN: 23042082BGVRPQ8602                                                                                SMI/AR 2023 

 

iii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not has 
made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or any other parties, hence reporting on sub clauses is not 
applicable. 

iv. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not granted any loans, has not made investments, has not given any guarantees nor 
has provided security to any companies, firms or other parties mentioned in the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Section 73 
to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

vi. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has 
not prescribed maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies Act 2013. 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records 
of the company examined by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed 
statutory dues, including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities;  

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records 
of the company examined by us, there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty 
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues which 
have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of 
the company examined by us there are no transactions which have not been recorded 
in the books of account but have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the 
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) 

ix. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in 
respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, there is no stipulated schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest on loans granted by the Company 

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records 
of the company examined by us the company has not been  declared as wilful defaulter 
by any bank or financial institution or other lender; 

 (c) The Company has not obtained any term loan during the year hence clause ix (c) of 
the order is not applicable. 
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 (d) The Company has not raised any funds during the year hence ix (d) of the order is not 
applicable. 

  (e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
records of the company examined by us the company has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or 
joint ventures. 

 (f) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records 
of the company examined by us the company has not raised loans during the year on the 
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. 

 x. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
made any initial public offering or any further public offer including debt instrument.  

 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year So requirement to 
comply with the section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise. 

xi. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per information and 
explanations given to us, to the best of our knowledge no fraud on or by the Company 
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit. 

  (b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per information and 
explanations given to us, to the best of our knowledge no report under sub-section 
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 
Central Government;  

 (c) Based upon the audit procedures performed and as per information and 
explanations given to us, to the best of our knowledge the company has not received 
any whistle-blower complaints during the year.  

xii. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the clause (xii) 
(a), (xii) (b), and (xii) (c) of paragraph 3 of the said order is not applicable to the company 
as the nature of the business of the company is not a Nidhi Company. 

xiii. According to information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the 
company examined by us , all the transactions with the related parties entered into by 
the company are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013  
where applicable. The details of the same have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 
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xiv. We have been informed that internal audit is not mandatory as per Section 138 of the 
Companies Act 2013 hence reporting on clause xiv(a)and xiv(b) is not applicable.. 

xv. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company 
has not entered into non cash transactions with the directors or any person so the 
compliance with the provision of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not 
applicable. 

xvi. (a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 45-IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934)  

 (b) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the records of 
the company examined by us, the company has not conducted any Non-Banking 
Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) 
from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;  

(c) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the records of 
the company examined by us the company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as 
defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. 

 (d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the records of 
the company examined by us, the Group does not have any CIC.; 

xvii. The company has incurred cash loss of Rs 0.18 lakhs during the financial year under 
audit, and had incurred cash loss of Rs 0.19 lakhs in the immediate preceding financial 
year. 

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 

 (xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, 
considering the support letter received from the Holding Company and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date 
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to 
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that 
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 
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 (xx) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the records of 
the company examined by us, the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of 
the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company. 

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the records of 
the company examined by us, provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the 
Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company.;  

(xxi) This being report on standalone financial statements, clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of the said 
order is not applicable. 

 

 
 

For Udeshi Shukla & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN 114886W 
 

Sd/- 
CA Paresh Vijaysinh Udeshi 
Partner 
MRN 042082  
Mumbai - April 18, 2023 
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Note 
No.

 As at
31st March,2023 

 As at
31st March,2022 

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 4 5,982.00                          5,982.00                          
Other non-current assets 5 -                                    -                                    

Current assets
Financial Assets
i) Cash and cash equivalents 6(a) 0.37                                  0.55                                  

Total Assets 5,982.37                          5,982.55                          

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity Share capital 10 5.00                                  5.00                                  
Other Equity 11 189.17                             189.35                             

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 7 5,788.00                          5,788.00                          

Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Trade payables 8 0.18                                  0.18                                  
Income Tax Liabilities (Net) 9 0.02                                  0.02                                  

Total Equity and Liabilities 5,982.37                          5,982.55                          

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Udeshi Shukla & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 114886W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Paresh Vijaysinh Udeshi Niraj Maheshwari Mukesh B Agarwal
Partner Director                                   Director                                   
Membership No. 42082 DIN No. 00535743 DIN No. 03416254

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : 18/04/2023Date  : 18/04/2023

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars



Particulars
Note 
No.

 For the year                
ended

31st March, 2023 

 For the year                
ended

31st March, 2022 

Revenue from operations -                                     -                               
Other Income 12 -                                     -                               

Total Income -                                     -                               

EXPENSES :
Finance costs 13 -                                     0.01                             
Other expenses 14 0.18                                   0.18                             

Total expenses 0.18                                   0.19                             

Profit/(loss) before tax (0.18)                                  (0.19)                            

 Tax expense:
    - Current tax -                                     -                               
    - Excess /Short Provision of Income Tax  
      of earlier years (Net) -                                     -                               
    - Deferred tax -                                     -                               
Total tax expense -                                     -                               

Profit/(loss) for the year (A) (0.18)                                  (0.19)                            
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Gains/losses on equity instruments at FVOCI -                                     -                               
Income tax relating to these items -                                     -                               

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) -                                     -                               
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) (0.18)                                  (0.19)                            

Earnings per equity share 
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (0.36)                                  (0.38)                            

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For Udeshi Shukla & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 114886W

             Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Paresh Vijaysinh Udeshi Niraj Maheshwari Mukesh B Agarwal
Partner Director                                   Director                                   
Membership No. 42082 DIN No. 00535743 DIN No. 03416254

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : 18/04/2023 Date  : 18/04/2023

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Profit and Loss statement for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



 For the year                
ended

31st March, 2023 

 For the year                
ended

31st March, 2022 
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (0.18)                                (0.19)                                
Adjustments for:

Interest Expenses -                                   0.01                                  
Assets/ capital advances/ pre-operative expenses written off -                                   -                                    

(0.18)                                (0.18)                                
Adjustments for :

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables -                                   -                                    
(Increase)/decrease in Other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables -                                   -                                    

Cash generated from Operations (0.18)                                (0.18)                                
Direct Taxes Paid ( net )

Income tax Paid (0.11)                                

A Net Cash from /(used in) Operating Activities (0.18)                                (0.29)                                

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest Income -                                   -                                    

B Net Cash from / (used in) Investing Activities -                                   -                                    

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Interest & Finance charges paid -                                   (0.01)                                
Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Long Term Unsecured Loan -                                   -                                    

C Net Cash from /(used in)  Financing Activities -                                   (0.01)                                

D (0.18)                                (0.30)                                

E 0.55                                 0.85                                  

F 0.37                                 0.55                                  

Reconciliation of Cash Flow statements as per the cash flow statement 

Cash Flow statement as per above comprises of the following

Cash and cash equivalents 0.37                                 0.55                                  

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents -                                   -                                    

Balances as per statement of cash flows 0.37                                 0.55                                  

The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For Udeshi Shukla & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 114886W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Paresh Vijaysinh Udeshi  Niraj Maheshwari Mukesh B Agarwal
Partner                                    Director                                   Director                                   
Membership No. 42082   DIN No. 00535743 DIN No. 03416254

Place : Mumbai   Place : Mumbai
Date  : 18/04/2023       Date  : 18/04/2023

 Net  Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 

 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Cash Flow Statement  for the year ended 31st March '2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 



A. Equity Share Capital (Refer Note 10)

Balance as at 31 March 2022                      5.00 

Changes in equity share capital -                       
Balance as at 31st March 2023                      5.00 

B. Other Equity (Refer Note 11)

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Reserves and Surplus

 Retained Earnings 
Balance as at 31 March 2022 189.35                                  189.35                             

Profit for the period (0.18)                                     (0.18)                                
Other Comprehensive Income for the 
period -                                        -                                    

Total Comprehensive Income for the period (0.18)                                 (0.18)                                
Balance as at 31st March 2023 189.17                                  189.17                             

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Udeshi Shukla & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 114886W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Paresh Vijaysinh Udeshi Niraj Maheshwari Mukesh B Agarwal
Partner Director                                   Director                                   
Membership No. 42082 DIN No. 00535743 DIN No. 03416254

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : 18/04/2023Date  : 18/04/2023

 SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Statement of Changes in Equity  for the year ended 31st March'2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Total 



SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTURCTURE LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March ,2023 
 

1. Company Information 
 
Swiss Merchandise Infrastructure Limited is a public limited company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The registered office of the Company is 
located at Block D, 4th Floor, 22 Camac Street, Kolkata – 700016, West Bengal. 
 
The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company’s board of directors on 18th April, 
2023. 
 

2. Basic of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies 
 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless 
otherwise stated. 
 
2.1 Basis of Preparation 

 
(a) Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards 

 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). 
 

(b) Historical cost convention 
 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified 
by the following: 
 
Land included in PPE are measured at fair value. 
  

(c) Current non-current classification 
 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s 
normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Act. 
 

(d) Rounding of amounts 
 
The financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency 
and all amounts are rounded to the nearest Lakhs, unless otherwise stated.  

 
3. Summary of significant accounting policies 

 
The financial statements have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and 
measurement basis summarized below. These were used throughout all periods presented in the 
financial statements. 
 
3.1 Foreign currency translation 

 
Initial recognition 
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Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign 
currency amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at 
the date of the transaction. 
Conversion 
Foreign currency monetary items are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the 
reporting date. Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated 
in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction and non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in the 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were 
determined.  
 
Exchange difference 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting such monetary 
items of Company at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the 
year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the 
year in which they arise. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at 
cost is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in the value of the item 
(i.e., translation differences on items whose gain or loss is recognized in OCI or statement of profit 
& loss are also recognized in OCI or statement of profit & loss, respectively). 
 
In respect of foreign exchange differences arising on revaluation or settlement of long term 
foreign currency monetary items, the Company has availed the option available in the Companies 
(Accounting Standards) (Second Amendment) Rules 2011, wherein: 
 

• Foreign exchange differences on account of depreciable assets are adjusted in the cost of 
depreciable assets and would be depreciated over balance life of the assets. 

• In other cases, foreign exchange differences are accumulated in “Foreign Currency 
Monetary item Translation Difference Account” and amortized over the balance period of 
such long terms assets/ liabilities. 

• An asset or liability is designated as a long term foreign currency monetary item, if the 
asset or liability is expressed in a foreign currency and has a term of twelve months or 
more at the date of origination of the asset or the liability, which is determined taking into 
consideration the terms of the payment/ settlement as defined under the respective 
agreement/ memorandum of understanding.  
 

3.2 Fair Value Measurement 
 
The Company discloses fair values of financial instrument measured at amortized cost in the 
financial statements. 
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability take place either: 
 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability Or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.  
 
The Company must be able to access the principal or the most advantageous market at the 
measurement date. 
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.  
 
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability 
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.  
 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole: 
 
Level 1 – Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 
 
Level-3 – Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable. 
  
For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
company determines whether transfer have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. Valuation process and assumption 
used to measure the fair value of Assets and Liabilities is disclosed.   

 
3.3 Property, plant and equipment 

 
Free hold land is carried at fair value. All other items of property, plant and equipment acquired or 
constructed are initially recognized at cost net of recoverable taxes, duties, trade discounts and 
rebates, less accumulated depreciation and impairment of loss, if any. The cost of Tangible Assets 
comprises of its purchase price, borrowing costs and adjustment arising for exchange rate 
variations attributable to the assets, including any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets 
to their working condition for their intended use.  

 
Spare parts are recognized as property, plant and equipment (PPE) when they meet the definition 
of PPE, otherwise, such item are classified as inventory. 

 
Depreciation/Amortization 

 
The Company depreciates its property, plant and equipment (including assets constructed on land 
not owned by the Company) over the useful life in the manner prescribed in schedule II to the Act 
and the management believe that useful life of assets are same as  those prescribed in schedule II 
to the Act. 

 
Lease hold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the lease period. 

 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals 
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are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in statement of 
profit and loss.  

 
 
3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets 

 
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An 
impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s or cash generating unit’s 
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount and is recognized in the statement of Profit and 
Loss.  
 

3.5 Trade Receivable 
 
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sale of goods or services performed in the 
ordinary course of business. Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value. They are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, net of provision for 
impairment.  The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables, are assumed to be 
approximate to their fair values. 
 

3.6 Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and deposits held at call with banks. 
For the purpose of the cash flows statements, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an 
integral part of the Company’s cash management. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown 
within borrowing in current liabilities. 
 

3.7 Other financial assets 
 
i. Initial recognition and measurement 

 
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not 
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the 
acquisition of the financial asset. 
 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets in the 
following measurement categories: 
• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive 

income, or through profit or loss), and 
• those measured at amortized cost.  

 
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing in financial assets and 
the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will 
either be recovered in profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in 
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the group has made an irrevocable election at 
the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other 
comprehensive income. 
 



SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTURCTURE LIMITED 
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March ,2023 
 

iii. Derecognition 
 

A financial asset is derecognized only when: 
 
a) the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
b) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has 

assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows to one or more recipient. 
 
Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred 
subsequently all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the 
financial asset is derecognized. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognized.  
 
Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognized if the Company 
has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the 
financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of continuing involvement 
in the financial asset.  
 

iv. Impairment of financial assets 
 
Trade receivables: The Company applies the simplified approach to providing for expected 
credit losses prescribed by Ind AS 109, which requires the use of the lifetime expected loss 
provision for all trade receivables and lease receivables.  

 
3.8  Financial liabilities 

 
i. Classification as debt or equity 

 
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities 
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the 
definition of the financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity instrument is any 
contract that evidences a residual interest in the asset of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities.  

ii. Initial recognition and measurement 
 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s 
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loan borrowings including bank 
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments. 
 

iii. Subsequent measurements 
 

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:  
 
Borrowings: Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized cost, any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value, is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest 
method. Fee paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of 
the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In 
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence 
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that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a 
prep-payment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it 
relates.  
 
Trade and other payable: These amounts represents obligations to pay for goods or services 
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and payables 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

 
iv. Derecognition 

 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing liability is replaced by another from the same tender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and 
the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.  

 
3.9  Income Tax 

 
Income Tax expenses comprise current tax and deferred tax charge or credit. 
 
Current Tax is measured on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting 
period in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
and other applicable tax laws. 
 
Deferred tax is recognised, on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax 
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the 
temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognised directly in equity or 
OCI is recognised in equity or OCI and not in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  Minimum Alternate 
Tax (MAT) Credits are in the form of unused tax credits that are carried forward by the Company 
for a specified period of time, hence it is grouped with Deferred Tax Asset. MAT is recognised as an 
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal 
income tax during the specified period. 

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a 
net basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax 
assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.  
 
A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 
be available against which the temporary difference can be utilized except: 
a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the 
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at 
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 
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b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable 
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the 
extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be 
realised. 
 
The Government of India, on September 20, 2019, vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) 
Ordinance 2019, inserted a new Section 115BAB in the Income Tax Act, 1961, which provides an 
option to the Company for paying Income Tax at reduced rates as per the provisions/conditions 
defined in the said section. The Company is continuing with higher income tax rate option. 
 
 

3.10  Provisions and contingent liabilities  
 
Provisions  
 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a 
result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.  
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.  
 
Contingent liabilities   
 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the 
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A present obligation that 
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle or reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed as contingent 
liability. 
  

3.11  Revenue Recognition 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and represents 
amounts receivable for goods supplied, state net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The 
Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is 
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have 
been met for each of the company’s activities, as described below: 
 
a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership is 

transferred to the buyer. Export sales are accounted for on the basis of dates of Bill of Lading. 
Sales are disclosed net of sales tax/VAT, trade discounts and returns, as applicable.  

b) In case of sale of Carbon Credits, (Certified Emission Reductions), revenue is recognized on 
submission of application with UNFCCC after execution of agreement with the buyer. 
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c) Export benefits are accounted for on the basis of application filed with the appropriate 
authority. 

d) Dividend income on investments is accounted for when the right to receive the payment is 
established, interest income is recognized on accrual basis. 

 
3.12  Accounting of Claims 

 
a) Claims receivable are accounted for at the time when reasonable certainty of receipt is 

established. Claims payable are accounted for at the time of acceptance. 
b) Claims raised by Government Authorities regarding taxes and duties, are accounted for based 

on the merits of each claim. If same is disputed by the Company, these are shown as 
‘Contingent Liabilities’. 

 
3.13  Earnings per share  

 
Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Earnings considered in ascertaining the 
Company’s earnings per share are the net profit or loss for the year. The weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year and for all years presented is adjusted for 
events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have 
changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year 
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding 
during the year is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.  
 
 

3.14  Cash flow statement  
 
Cash flow are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the 
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash 
receipts of payments. 
 
The cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated 
based on the available information. 
 

3.15  Critical accounting estimates and judgments 
 
Preparing the financial statements under Ind AS requires management to take decisions and make 
estimates and assumptions that may impact the value of revenues, costs, assets and liabilities and 
the related disclosures concerning the items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities at 
the balance sheet date. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on 
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
The company make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting 
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 
 
a) Impairment of assets 

 



SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTURCTURE LIMITED 
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The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is determined based on value-in-
use calculations prepared on the basis of management’s assumption and estimates. 
 

b) Defined benefit obligations  
 
The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are 
determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in 
determining the net cost/ (income) for post employments plans include the discount rate. Any 
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of such obligations.  
 
The company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the 
interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash 
outflows expected to be required to settle the defined benefit obligations. In determining the 
appropriate discount rate the Company considers the interest rate of government bonds of 
maturity approximating the terms of the related plan liability. 
 

c) Income taxes 
 
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain 
and would get finalized on completion of assessment by tax authorities. Where the final tax 
outcome is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will 
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is 
made. 
 
Deferred tax on temporary differences reversing within the tax holiday period is measured at 
the tax rates that are expected to apply during the tax holiday period, which is the lower tax 
rate or the nil tax rate. Deferred tax on temporary differences reversing after the tax holiday 
period is measured at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are expected to 
apply after the tax holiday period. 
 

d) Provision 
 
Estimates of the amounts of provisions recognized are based on current legal and constructive 
requirements, technology and price levels. Because actual outflows can differ from estimates 
due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations, technology, prices and conditions, 
and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amount of provisions are regularly 
reviewed and adjusted to take account of such changes.  
 
The judgments that have a significant task of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below: 
 
a) When substantially all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of financial assets 

and lease assets are transferred to other entities. 
b) Whether an asset should be classified as held-for-sale or an operation meets the definition 

of a discontinued operation 
c) Whether multiple assets should be grouped to form a single cash generating unit (where 

this would affect whether an impairment is recognized). 
 
 

 
  



Note 4: Property, Plant and Equipment :

 Particulars  Freehold Land  Total 

Year ended 31 March 2022

Gross carrying amount

Cost as at 01.04.2021 5982.00 5982.00

Additions -                           -                          

Closing gross carrying amount 5982.00 5982.00

 Accumulated Depreciation 

 Accumulated Depreciation as on 01.04.2021 -                           -                          

Depreciation charge during the year -                           -                          

 Closing accumulated depreciation -                           -                          

Net carrying amount as on 31.03.2022 5982.00 5982.00

Year ended 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount

Cost as at 01.04.2022 5982.00 5982.00

Additions -                           -                          

Closing gross carrying amount 5982.00 5982.00

 Accumulated Depreciation 
 Accumulated Depreciation as on 01.04.2022 -                           -                          

Depreciation charge during the year

 Closing accumulated depreciation -                           -                          

Net carrying amount as on 31.03.2023 5982.00 5982.00
*No revaluation has been done during the year.

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
 (A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



Relevant 
line 
item in 
the 
Balance 
sheet

Description 
of item of 
property

Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds held in the name of If held 
jointly 
(Name 
and 
Company'
s Share)

Whether title 
deed holder is 
a promoter, 
director or 
relative of 
promoter/direc
tor or 
employee of 
promoter/direc
tor

Period held: 
indicate a 
range - 
where 
appropriate 

Reason for not being held in the name of 
the company

PPE Land 4,36,41,007.95        RIHAN HASAN PARKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 17,27,297.64           SHAHID SHAMSUDDIN DHANSE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 32,17,859.06           SHAHID SHAMSUDDIN DHANSE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 35,24,739.36           MALJI GOVIND PATIL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 7,10,208.68             ASHFAQE MUKADAM No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 16,83,457.60           SAHADEV CHANGYA DUMAL,SAIJIBAI 
P.PATIL

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 96,18,505.16           KRUPA KRISHNA DHUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 29,89,890.85           SAMSUDIN DADAMIYA DHANSE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 98,72,777.40           KRISHNA RAMA DHUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 3,84,82,788.64        RIHAN HASAN PARKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 32,35,395.08           NAZIM MOHD SARIF HASWARE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 36,56,259.48           NAEEM MOHD SARIF HASWARE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 1,43,26,925.64        KRUPA KRISHNA DHUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 19,81,569.89           NARAYAN LAXMAN NAKVI No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 10,60,929.01           MADHUKAR RAM PATIL, PANDURANG R. 
PATIL, GANESH R. PATIL, MAHENDRA 

PATIL, PARVATI D. PERVI, HIRABAI 
CHALKE, KAUSALYA D. GHOSALKAR

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 19,02,657.81           HARISHCHANDRA P. PERVI No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 19,02,657.81           MAHADEV J.BEDUKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 13,59,041.29           DHARMA JANU NAKTI, NATIBAI J. PATIL, 
PARVATI M. NAKTI, SACHIN M. NAKTI, 

SANGITA S. PERVI

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 58,74,565.59           SAHADEV HARI CHALKE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 18,50,049.76           MALAJI MALJI PATIL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 1,64,13,711.63        JAKIABIBI ABDUL SATTAR PESHMAN No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 84,08,520.01           VARSHA SATISH GORADIA No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 40,77,123.88           MALTI RAMCHANDRA BEDEKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 10,78,465.03           DOC IN SUB REGISTRAR OFFICE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 2,89,344.28             VISHWANATH PAYER No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March'2023
 (A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited) 

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Note 4.1 : Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company



Relevant 
line 
item in 
the 
Balance 
sheet

Description 
of item of 
property

Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds held in the name of If held 
jointly 
(Name 
and 
Company'
s Share)

Whether title 
deed holder is 
a promoter, 
director or 
relative of 
promoter/direc
tor or 
employee of 
promoter/direc
tor

Period held: 
indicate a 
range - 
where 
appropriate 

Reason for not being held in the name of 
the company

PPE Land 16,39,617.56           JAIKUMAR SHAH , MANSHA SHAH , 
DINESH SHAH, BIPIN SHAH

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 43,48,932.14           GOURIBAI DUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 1,29,76,652.36        MANSOOR SATVILKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 90,13,512.58           CHIRAG ABDUL SAMAD, MUSTABA , 
MOHEBULLA, AFFAN, A
JMAD, ABDUL KHALIL

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 30,16,194.87           DHONDU NAKTI No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 11,31,073.08           ABDUL SAMAD No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 63,65,574.06           SHAHID SHAMSUDDIN DHANSE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 15,95,777.52           Prabhakar Chalke No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 43,84,004.17           FAIZAL POPERE , KAZI AKIL ABDUL 
REHMAN

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 81,54,247.76           ABDUL SAMAD NAZIR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 20,42,945.95           LAKHMA NAKTI No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 2,04,29,459.45        KANTA RAMA SAWANT, MANJULA 
GOVIND JADHAV, 

RAJENDRA NAIK, JITENDRA MAHADEV 
NAIK, JYOTSTNA RAJENDRA 

 BHALERAO

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 2,12,71,188.25        KRUPA KRISHNA DHUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 28,93,442.76           VIJAY GOVIND BHAYPATIL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 77,15,847.35           KRISHNA RAMA DHUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 15,08,097.44           MALAJI JANYA VARALKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 1,40,28,813.36        BHIKU MHATRE, NARAYAN MHATRE, 
NATIBAI MHATRE, 

SHANTARAM H. KAMBLI, MALTIBAI D. 
MHATRE, DEEPAK 

MHATRE, MILIND MHATRE, UJWALA 
MHATRE

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 28,84,674.75           JANABAI KAVILKAR , NIRMALA PATIL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 14,81,793.41           LAKSHMAN NARAYAN DHUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 42,61,252.06           DHARMA KANU GHOSALKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 58,65,797.59           CHANDRKANT NATHURAM KAKANEKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 15,08,097.44           CHANDRKANT NATHURAM KAKANEKAR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 32,44,163.09           RUKIA AZIZ UKAYE, ABDUL UKAYE, 
MOHDMAD, MIRZA, HIDAYTULLAH, 

MOHD.TAKI, FARIDA AMRUDDIN UKAYE, 
SAJADI I. GITE

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 20,86,785.99           MOHD. HUSAIN SANGE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)



Relevant 
line 
item in 
the 
Balance 
sheet

Description 
of item of 
property

Gross carrying 
value

Title deeds held in the name of If held 
jointly 
(Name 
and 
Company'
s Share)

Whether title 
deed holder is 
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director or 
relative of 
promoter/direc
tor or 
employee of 
promoter/direc
tor

Period held: 
indicate a 
range - 
where 
appropriate 

Reason for not being held in the name of 
the company

PPE Land 13,94,113.33           SHAKUNTALA SAMGAONKAR, TULSIRAM 
D. SAIGAOVKAR, 

SAVITRI N. MURUDKAR, VITHA B. PALKAR, 
SUMAN U.

 MHASALKAR, VIMAL H. BHOIR

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 55,58,917.29           GOPAL J. PATIL, NANDA PATIL, NAMRATA 
PATIL, 

HIRA PATIL, BHIKI J. PATIL

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 15,78,241.50           SUMITRA SHIVRAM BERADI, SACHIN 
BERADI, SANTOSH BERADI, 

GITA SAMBHAJI VARTAK

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 70,05,638.67           RAIUTLLH I. MUKADAM No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 12,88,897.23           KRISHNA RAMA DHUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 27,18,082.59           KRUPA KRISHNA DHUMAL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 71,45,926.80           ANANT JANARDAN KAVIRKAR, JANARDAN 
P. KAVILKAR, EKNATH J.PATIL,

SANTABAI P. PATIL, KAMAL K. PATIL, 
DEVAKA A. VARALKAR

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 76,28,167.26           SMITA JANARDAN KAMBLI No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 27,44,386.61           BASHIRA BIBI ALI MIYA MUKADAM No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 69,26,726.60           SHAHID DHANSE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 26,83,010.55           NARAYAN GOVIND MAHADAN No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 30,86,338.94           HAFEZ IBRAHIM SANGE, AJGAR SANGE, 
IRSHAD SANGE, 

NISAR SANGE, YSMIN ABDULREHMAN 
JAMADAR, TABASSUM 

A. KAZI, SHABNAM SATVILKAR

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 17,97,441.71           Megha K. PATIL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 37,43,939.56           HARISCHANDRA HIRJI CHALKE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 21,04,322.00           PRAKASH LAKSHMAN PATIL No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 1,72,11,600.39        ABHAY KANKARIYA No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 10,41,90,243.21     VISHAL KALANTRI No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 40,68,355.87           RAJIBAI VISHVANATH PAYER No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 72,77,446.93           BHIKU MHATRE, NARAYAN MHATRE, 
NATIBAI MHATRE, 

SHANTARAM H. KAMBLI, MALTIBAI D. 
MHATRE, DEEPAK 

MHATRE, MILIND MHATRE, UJWALA 
MHATRE

No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 15,95,777.52           Madhukar Bahopi & Others No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 18,58,817.77           Krupa K Dhumal No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)
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Reason for not being held in the name of 
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PPE Land 1,21,87,531.60        Patil Family No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 16,22,081.54           Kishore Mathre & Others No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 12,62,593.20           Rambhau Chalke No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 13,76,577.31           Narayan Malji Patil, & Others No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 62,95,429.99           Abdul Sathvilkar & Others No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 15,78,241.50           Sunanda Nakti & Others No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 78,03,527.43           FAIZAL POPERE No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 33,58,147.20           Janardhan Nakti No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 93,11,624.87           Chandra Nakti & Others No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 1,09,42,474.42        Kashinath Pervi No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 30,68,802.92           MALTI Bedekar No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 1,79,83,185.12        MUNIR PESHMAN No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

PPE Land 10,69,697.02           FAIZ NAZIR No No 12-13 years Title deeds change process is under progress, 
post takeover by UltraTech Cement Limited 
(Ultimate Holding Co.)

59,82,00,000.00     
*No Dispute regarding land is  ongoing as on date.

Total



Current  Non-Current Current  Non-Current 

5. Other Non-Current Assets
-                          601.00                       -                     601.00                    
-                          (601.00)                      -                     (601.00)                   

Total -                          -                              -                     -                           

6. Financial Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks
- In Current Accounts 0.37                        -                              0.55                   -                           

- 
In Fixed Deposit Account with original 
maturity of less than three months -                          -                              -                     -                           

Total 0.37                        -                              0.55                   -                           

(b)

-                          -                              -                     -                           

Total -                          -                              -                     -                           

(c) Other Financial Assets
Accrued Interest -                          -                              -                     -                           

Total -                          -                              -                     -                           

7. Financial Liabilities
-                          5,788.00                    -                     5,788.00                 

Total -                          5,788.00                    -                     5,788.00                 

8. Current Liabilities
Trade Payables 0.18                        -                              0.18                   -                           

Total 0.18                        -                              0.18                   -                           

9. Income tax liabilities  (Net)
Provision for Income tax 1.16                        -                              1.16                   -                           
Advance tax (1.14)                       -                              (1.14)                  -                           

Total 0.02                        -                              0.02                   -                           

Unsecured loans from Holding company

Capital Advances
Less: Provision for doubtful recovery

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

Fixed Deposits with original maturity of 
more than three months but less than 
twelve months

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
 (A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022



Note 10:  Equity Share Capital

 As at
31st March,2023 

 As at
 31 March, 2022 

Authorised
100,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10.00                              10.00                 

Total 10.00                              10.00                 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 5.00                                5.00                   

Total 5.00                                5.00                   

a) Reconciliation of number of shares

No. of shares Amount (Rs.) No. of shares Amount (Rs.)
Equity Shares:
Balance as at the beginning of the year 50,000                 5.00                                50,000              5.00                   
Add : Issued during the year -                       -                                  -                    -                     
Balance as at the end of the year 50,000                 5.00                                50,000              5.00                   

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

c) Shares held by Holding Company

 As at
31st March,2023 

 As at                         
31 March, 2022 

50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 
held by UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Ltd. 5.00                                5.00                   

d) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the 
Holding Company

No. of shares % of
share holding

No. of shares % of
share holding

Equity shares
UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Ltd. 50,000                 100% 50,000              100%

e)

Promoter Name No. of shares
% of

share holding No. of shares
% of

share holding

UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited 50,000                 100% 50,000              100%

 As at
31st March,2023 

 As at                                                 
31 March, 2022 

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
 (A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 As at
31st March,2023 

 As at                                                 
31 March, 2022 

The entire Share Capital is held by UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Ltd. (formerly known as Binani Cement Ltd.). The company has
only one class of equity shares having face value of Rs 10/- per share. Each holder of the equity share is entitled to one vote per
share. The company has not issued any bonus shares or any shares for the period of five immediately preceeding the previous year
for consideration other than cash, nor the company has bought shares during the period of five immediately preceeding the
previous year. In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

 As at
31st March,2023 

 As at                                                 
31 March, 2022 

Shares held by Promoters:



SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 8.1: Trade Payables Ageing Schedule

Particulars
Unbilled 

Dues
Outstanding 
but not due Total

Less than 1 
year 1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 
years

 As on March 31, 2023:
(i) MSME -                 -                 -               -         -         -                 -                  
(ii) Others 0.18               -                 -               -         -         -                 0.18                
(iii) Disputed- MSME -                 -                 -               -         -         -                 -                  
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others -                 -                 -               -         -         -                 -                  
Total as on March 31,2023 0.18               -                 -               -         -         -                 0.18                
 As on March 31, 2022
(i) MSME -                 -                 -               -         -         -                 -                  
(ii) Others 0.18               -                 -               -         -         -                 0.18                
(iii) Disputed- MSME -                 -                 -               -         -         -                 -                  
(iv) Disputed Dues- Others -                 -                 -               -         -         -                 -                  
Total as on March 31,2022 0.18               -                 -               -         -         -                 0.18                

Outstanding  for the following periods from the 
due date of payment



Note 11. Other Equity

 As at
31st March,2023 

 As at                                                 
31 March, 2022 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period                                 189.35                                 189.54 

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors                                          -                                            -   

 Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period                                          -                                            -   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year                                          -                                            -   

Dividends                                          -                                            -   

Transfer to retained earnings                                    (0.18)                                    (0.19)

Any other change (to be specified)                                          -                                            -   

Balance at the end of the reporting period                                 189.17                                 189.35 

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
 (A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particular
Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Retained Earnings



 For the year                
ended

31st March, 2023 

 For the year                
ended

31st March, 2022 

12. Other Income
    Interest Income -                                    -                             
    Other Misc Income -                                    -                             

-                                    -                             

13. Finance Costs
   Bank charges -                                    -                             
   Interest Others -                                    0.01                           

-                                    0.01                           

14. Other Expenses
    Legal & Professional Fees -                                    -                             
    Filing Fees -                                    -                             
    Audit Fees - Refer note 14(a) 0.18                                  0.18                           
    Provision for Impairement of Land -                                    -                             
    Misc Expenses -                                    -                             

0.18                                  0.18                           

14(a) Payment to Auditors
Statutory Auditors
        a)   Audit fees 0.18                                  0.18                           
        b)   Out of pocket expenses -                                    -                             

0.18                                  0.18                           

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
 (A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023



Note 15 :Related Party Disclosure

Names of related parties and description of relationship:

a) Holding Company
UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Ltd. (formerly known as Binani Cement Ltd.)

b) Investing parties/promoters having significant influence on the Company directly or indirectly 
Companies
Ultimate Holding Company
UltraTech Cement Limited

Directors
Mr. Niraj Maheshwari (appointed w.e.f 20.11.2018)
Mr. Kailash Chandra Jhanwar (appointed w.e.f. 20.11.2018)
Mr. Mukesh B Agarwal (appointed w.e.f. 20.11.2018)

c) Fellow Subsidiaries:

d) Transactions with related parties

(a) The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:                                                           

Nature of Transaction/Relationship
Year Ended 

March 31, 2023
Year Ended 

March 31, 2022
Repayment of Non- current Borrowings
Holding Company -                                    -                      
Total -                                    -                      
Other Expenses
Holding Company -                                    -                      
Total -                                    -                      

Holding Company -                                    -                      
Total -                                    -                      

(b) Outstanding balances:

Nature of Transaction/Relationship 31 March 2023 31 March' 2022
Other Financial liabilities

5,788.00                          5,788.00            

Total 5,788.00                          5,788.00            

*Terms and conditions:
i) Loan is taken for long term uncertain period.
ii) UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Ltd. has the first right to receive loan amount on disposal of company's assets.

Details of equity shares held by holding company

Company Relationship
% of

share holding
No. of shares

% of
share holding

No. of shares

UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Ltd. Holding Company 100% 50,000               100% 50,000               

Borrowings from UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Ltd.*

As at
31st March,2023

As at 
31 March 2022

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
 (A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

 Bhumi Resources (Singapore) Pte Ltd., PT Anggana Energy Resources ,  Merit Plaza Ltd.

During the year, the company has entered into transaction with its Holding Company -UltraTech 
Nathdwara Cement Ltd to use its premises at nil consideration for the registered office of the 
company and the same has been approved by the Board



Note 16: Fair value measurements

i) Financial instruments by category

FVPL FVOCI Amortised
cost

FVPL FVOCI Amortised
cost

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents -     -             0.37                          -        -           0.55                           
Other Bank Balances -                            -                             
Other financial assets -     -             -                            -           -                             
Total financial assets -     -             0.37                          -        -          0.55                           

Financial liabilities
Borrowings -     -             5,788.00                   -        -           5,788.00                    
Trade Payables -     -             0.18                          -        -           0.18                           
Other financial liabilities -     -             -                            -        -           -                             
Total financial liabilities -     -             5,788.18                  -        -          5,788.18                   

ii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

 Fair value  Fair value 
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.37                          0.55                           
Other bank balances -                            -                             
Other financial assets -                            -                             
Total financial assets 0.37                          0.55                           

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 5,788.00                   5788.00
Trade payables 0.18                          0.18                           
Other financial liabilities -                            -                             
Total financial liabilities 5,788.18                  5788.18

Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.

-                            -                            
5,788.18                  5,788.18                  

5,788.00                  5,788.00                  
0.18                          0.18                          

-                            -                            
0.37                          0.55                         

0.37                          0.55                          
-                            -                            

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
 Carrying  Carrying

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022



Note 17 : Financial risk management

(A) Credit risk

(i) Credit risk management

Ageing of Account receivables

As at
31st March,2023

As at
 31st March,2022

-                                  -                           
0-180 Days -                                  -                           
181-360 Days -                                  -                           

-                                  -                           
-                                  -                           
-                                  -                           

1 years to 2 years
More than 2 years
Total 

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counter party may not be able to settle their obligations as agreed. To manage
this, the Company periodically assesses financial reliability of customers and other counter parties, taking into account the
financial condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of financial assets. Individual
risk limits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information.

Not due 

The company is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in 
a financial loss to the group. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, financial assets carried at amortised cost,
derivative products and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to trade/non-trade
customers including outstanding receivables. 

 SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The
Company’s financial risk management policy is set by the Managing Board.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of
a financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is
attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency
receivables, payables and loans and borrowings.

The Company manages market risk through a treasury department, which evaluates and exercises independent control over
the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommend risk management objectives and
policies, which are approved by Senior Management and the Audit Committee. The activities of this department include
management of cash resources, implementing hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures like foreign exchange
forward contracts, borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.



(B) Liquidity risk

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

●  all non-derivative financial liabilities

I) Maturity patterns of borrowings
As at

31st March,2023
0-180 Days 181 Days to 

1 Year
1 years to 

5 years
More than 

5 years
Total

Long term borrowings (Including current maturity of
long term debt)

                       -                      -                     -                     5,788.00                   5,788.00 

Total                        -                      -                     -                     5,788.00                   5,788.00 

As at
 31st March,2022

0-180 Days 181 Days to 
1 Year

1 years to 
5 years

More than 
5 years

Total

Long term borrowings (Including current maturity of
long tern debt)

                       -                      -                     -                     5,788.00                   5,788.00 

Total                        -                      -                     -                     5,788.00                   5,788.00 

As at
31st March,2023

0-180 Days 181-360 
Days

1 years to 
2 years

More than 
2 years

Total

Trade Payable                    0.18                    -                     -                                 -                            0.18 
Other Financial liability (Current and
Non Current)

                       -                      -                     -                                 -                                 -   

Payable related to Capital goods                        -                      -                     -                                 -                                 -   
Total                    0.18                    -                     -                                 -                            0.18 

As at
 31st March,2022

0-180 Days 181-360 
Days

1 years to 
2 years

More than 
2 years

Total

Trade Payable                    0.18                    -                     -                                 -                            0.18 
Other Financial liability (Current and
Non Current)

                       -                      -                     -                                 -                                 -   

Payable related to Capital goods                        -                      -                     -                                 -                                 -   
Total                    0.18                    -                     -                                 -                            0.18 

(C) Market risk
     Considering the present structure of the company, the company is not facing any market risk - foreign exchange & interest rate.

Note 18 :  Capital Commitments:

               The estimated amounts of contracts and commitments remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
               (net of advances) Nil (31st March, 2022 - Nil).

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. 

II) Maturity patterns of other Financial Liabilities

The tables below analyse the group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for:

 SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature
of the underlying businesses, group treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the group’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and
cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. This is generally carried out at local level in the operating companies of the group in
accordance with practice and limits set by the group. These limits vary by location to take into account the liquidity of the market in which
the entity operates. In addition, the group’s liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering
the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory
requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.



Note 19 : Capital management

(a) Risk management

31 March 2023 31 March,2022

Net Debt 5,787.63                    5,787.45                    

Total Equity 194.17                       194.35                       
Net debt to equity ratio 29.81                          29.78                         

 SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company aim to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
optimise returns to our shareholders.

The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in
order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and manage the
capital structure in light of changes in economic  conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain
investor, creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company will
take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.



Note 20 : Income taxes

The major components of income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022   are:

(a)  Statement of profit and loss:

31 March 2023 31 March,2022
(a) Income tax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year -                               -                      
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods -                               -                      
Total current tax expense -                               -                      

Deferred tax
Decrease (increase) in deferred tax assets
(Decrease) increase in deferred tax liabilities
Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) -                               -                      
Income tax expense -                               -                      

(b) The reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by tax rate :

31 March 2023 31 March,2022

Profit before income tax expense (0.18)                            (0.19)                   

Enacted income tax rate in India 26.00% 26.00%
Income tax expense as per enacted rate -                               -                      

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible(taxable) in calculating taxable income:
    Expenses disallowed since business not commenced -                               -                      

Depreciation -                               -                      
Other items -                               -                      
DTA not recognised -                               -                      

Adjustments for current tax of prior periods -                               -                      
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was recognised
Income tax expense -                               -                      

(c) Deferred tax  liabilities

31 March 2023 31 March,2022
Net deferred tax liability on depreciation due to timing difference -                               -                      

Less: Recoverable from beneficiaries -                               -                      
Closing balance -                               -                      

 SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)



Note 21 : Earnings per share

31 March 2023 31 March,2022
(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share

(0.18)                           (0.19)                  

(0.36)                           (0.38)                  

(b) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator

31 March ,2023
No. of shares

31 March ,2022
No. of shares

50,000                        50,000               
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in calculating 
basic and diluted earnings per share (B)

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company (A)

Basic and Diluted earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the company 
(A/B)



SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
(A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited)

 Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March'2023
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21.1 :Financial ratios

Sr. 
No. Ratio Formula

Numerator - 
Description

Denominator - 
Description FY23 FY22 % Variance Reason for variance

1
Current Ratio (in 
times)

Current Assets / 
Current Liabilities

Current Assets= 
Inventories + Current 
Investment + Trade 
Receivable + Cash & 
Cash Equivalents + 
Other Current Assets + 
Contract Assets + 
Assets held for Sale

Current Liability= Short 
term borrowings + Trade 
Payables + Other 
financial Liability+ 
Current tax (Liabilities) + 
Contract Liabilities+ 
Provisions + Other 
Current Liability 1.85             2.75        -33%

2
Debt-Equity Ratio 
(in times)

Debt / Equity

Debt= long term 
borrowing and current 
maturities of long-term 
borrowings and 
redeemable preference 
shares treated as 
financial liability

Equity=  Equity + 
Reserve and Surplus 29.81            29.78      0%

3

Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio (in 
times)

Net Operating 
Income / Debt 
Service 

Net Operating Income= 
Net profit after taxes + 
Non-cash operating 
expenses + finance cost

Debt Service =  Interest 
& Lease Payments + 
Principal Repayments -0.00            -0.00       -5%

4
Return on Equity 
Ratio (in %)

Profit after tax less 
pref. Dividend x 100 
/ Shareholder's 
Equity

Net Income= Net Profits 
after taxes – Preference 
Dividend Shareholder's Equity 0% 0% -5%

5
Inventory Turnover 
Ratio

Cost of Goods Sold 
/ Average Inventory Cost of Goods Sold

(Opening Inventory + 
Closing Inventory)/2 NA NA NA

6
Trade Receivables 
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit Sales / 
Average Trade 
Receivables Net Credit Sales

(Opening Trade 
Receivables + Closing 
Trade Receivable)/2 NA NA NA

7
Trade Payables 
Turnover Ratio

Net Credit 
Purchases / 
Average Trade 
Payables Net Credit Purchases

(Opening Trade 
Payables + Closing 
Trade Payables)/2 NA NA NA

8
Net Capital 
Turnover Ratio

Revenue / Average 
Working Capital Revenue

Average Working 
Capital=  Average of 
Current assets – Current 
liabilities NA NA NA

9 Net Profit Ratio
Net Profit / Net 
Sales Net Profit Net Sales NA NA NA

10
Return on Capital 
employed (in times)

EBIT / Capital 
Employed

EBIT= Earnings before 
interest and taxes

Capital Employed= Total 
Assets - Current Liability -                  -0.00        -100%

In FY 2020-21 Interest 
income was earned vis a 
vis in FY 2021-22 nil 
income.

11
Return on 
Investment (in %)

Net Profit / Net 
Investment Net Profit

Net Investment= Net 
Equity NA NA NA

Note 21.2 :Additional Disclosures
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(a)
(b)

(vi)

(a)
(b)

(vii)

(viii)
(ix)
(x)

(xi)

The company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.
The provisions of section 135 Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, no disclosure is made in the financial statements. 

Disclosures as per Schedule III [Including Amendments to Schedule III vide Notification No G.S.R 207(E)] have been made to the extent applicable to the company.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction, which is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.

The Company does not have any layers under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding 
that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in 
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.



22.

23. There are no other disclosures applicable to the Company that need to be reported as per IND AS.

Note:  Figures of previous years regrouped or restated wherever necessary.
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For Udeshi Shukla & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 114886W

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
CA Paresh Vijaysinh Udeshi Niraj Maheshwari Mukesh B Agarwal
Partner Director                                   Director                                   
Membership No. 42082 DIN No. 00535743 DIN No. 03416254

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date  : 18/04/2023Date  : 18/04/2023

SWISS MERCHANDISE INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
 (A subsidiary of UltraTech Nathdwara Cement Limited) 

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2023

The Company has not started business and therefore Segment disclosures as per IND AS 108 are not
applicable.
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